
*Please note: Times are approximate.  
**The Town shall provide reasonable accommodation for those with disabilities on a case-by-case basis. Please send 
accommodation requests to clerk@gmfco.us by 4pm on the date of the meeting. 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Agenda 
P.O. Box 524; 10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819 
Tuesday, January 04, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. 

REGULAR MEETING: 

TIME*  ITEM 
DESIRED 

OUTCOME 
7:00 1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
7:05 2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTION TO THE AGENDA  
7:10 3. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Accounts Payables from November 26, 2021 to January 1, 2022 
b. Minutes from BOT Meeting December 07, 2021 
c. Minutes from BOT Meeting December 10, 2021 

BOT Action 
Desired 

7:15 4. Consideration of Resolution No. 2022-01, A Resolution of the Town of Green 
Mountain Falls Colorado Making Appointment of Town Officials 

BOT Action 
Desired 

8:15 5. Oath of Office, Town Clerk/Treasurer, Nathan Scott  
8:20 6. Oath of Office, Town Manager, Becky Frank  
8:25 7. REPORTS 

a. Trustee Reports 
b. Committee Reports 
c. Staff Reports 

Information 
Only 

8:45 8. Catamount Trail Reopening; Jay Kita, PRT Committee Vice-Chairperson BOT Action 
Desired 

8:50 9. CORRESPONDENCE 
a. Executed - Fourth Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement 

Among El Paso County, Colorado, The City of Colorado Springs, The City of 
Manitou Springs, The Town of Green Mountain Falls, and The Town of 
Ramah Regarding the Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority 

b. Executed – A Resolution Approving the Inclusion of the Town of Calhan 
into The Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority  

Information 
Only 

9:10 10. PERSONS PRESENT NOT ON THE AGENDA: 3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER  
 11. ADJOURN  

 

mailto:clerk@gmfco.us


Town of Green Mountain Falls

Vendor Invoices Journal

from November 26, 2021 to January 01, 2022

Date Reference Entity Number Name Acct Number Acct Name Amount

1-00-00-2000 General-Accounts Payable       

11/30/2021 UMB November Charges UMBcardsvcs UMB Card Services 1-70-02-5124 General-Public Works-Operations-Maintenance - Roads 993.00

11/30/2021 UMB November Charges UMBcardsvcs UMB Card Services 1-70-02-5125 General-Public Works-Operations-Maintenance - Vehicle 16.41

11/30/2021 UMB November Charges UMBcardsvcs UMB Card Services 1-50-02-5123 General-Parks and Recreation-Operations-Maintenance - Grounds 153.25

11/30/2021 UMB November Charges UMBcardsvcs UMB Card Services 1-70-02-5125 General-Public Works-Operations-Maintenance - Vehicle 137.38

11/30/2021 UMB November Charges UMBcardsvcs UMB Card Services 1-20-02-5104 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Fees - Software 14.99

11/30/2021 UMB November Charges UMBcardsvcs UMB Card Services 1-10-02-5129 General-Administration-Operations-Supplies - Office 33.46

11/30/2021 UMB November Charges UMBcardsvcs UMB Card Services 1-70-03-5205 General-Public Works-Utilities-Utilities - Trash 114.17

11/30/2021 UMB November Charges UMBcardsvcs UMB Card Services 1-20-02-5104 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Fees - Software 44.97

12/01/2021 18276 springsit Springs IT 1-20-02-5110 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Services - IT 240.00

12/01/2021 M63331737943 araizeinc Araize INC. 1-20-02-5104 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Fees - Software 166.00

12/02/2021 00367368 municipalcodeco Municipal Code Coportion 1-20-02-5104 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Fees - Software 225.00

12/02/2021 12032021 brianbundy0000 Brian Bundy 1-10-02-5113 General-Administration-Operations-Services - Professional 800.00

12/06/2021 85232 FlairData Flair Data Systems DBA 1-20-02-5104 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Fees - Software 80.00

12/09/2021 November 2021 Billing LawDebEiland LAW OFFICES OF DEBRA EILAND 1-20-02-5114 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Services - Town Attorney 18.70

12/15/2021 20712335 Pinnacol Pinnacol Assurance 1-10-01-5021 General-Administration-Labor-Labor - Workman's Comp 273.33

12/15/2021 20712335 Pinnacol Pinnacol Assurance 1-40-01-5021 General-Public Safety-Labor-Labor - Workman's Comp 273.33

12/15/2021 20712335 Pinnacol Pinnacol Assurance 1-70-01-5021 General-Public Works-Labor-Labor - Workman's Comp 273.34

12/15/2021 85325 FlairData Flair Data Systems DBA 1-10-03-5202 General-Administration-Utilities-Utilities - Telephone/Internet 223.80

12/17/2021 12172021 brianbundy0000 Brian Bundy 1-10-02-5113 General-Administration-Operations-Services - Professional 800.00

12/20/2021 5200166935 COSpringUtil Colorado Springs Utilities 1-10-03-5200 General-Administration-Utilities-Utilities - Electric 167.76

12/20/2021 5872676037 COSpringUtil Colorado Springs Utilities 1-60-03-5200 General-Pool-Utilities-Utilities - Electric 17.49

12/20/2021 6357261325 COSpringUtil Colorado Springs Utilities 1-70-03-5200 General-Public Works-Utilities-Utilities - Electric 314.55

12/20/2021 7990482304 COSpringUtil Colorado Springs Utilities 1-50-03-5204 General-Parks and Recreation-Utilities-Utilities - Electric - Gazebo 112.58

12/20/2021 9827690757 COSpringUtil Colorado Springs Utilities 1-50-03-5203 General-Parks and Recreation-Utilities-Utilities - Electric - Fountain 30.20

12/21/2021 9364097282 COSpringUtil Colorado Springs Utilities 1-70-03-5206 General-Public Works-Utilities-Utilities - Electric - Street Lights 528.62

12/22/2021 142169 SIGN SHOP ILLUMSIGN SHOP ILLUMINATED LLC. 1-50-02-5130 General-Parks and Recreation-Operations-Suppies - Operational 18,390.20

12/27/2021 102867 wilsoncompany Wilson & Company 2-10-00-4030 Capital Improvement-Administration-Grants - State - DOLA 2 (Flood Recovery) 11,843.88

12/29/2021 132573 COSpringGaz Colorado Springs Gazette, LLC 1-10-02-5118 General-Administration-Operations-Publications - Legal Notices 1,409.60

12/30/2021 00368423 municipalcodeco Municipal Code Coportion 1-10-02-5117 General-Administration-Operations-Publications - Code 750.00

12/31/2021 065 wilsonwllli0000 Wilson Williams LLP 2-10-00-4040 Capital Improvement-Administration-Grants - State - DOLA 3 (Planning Code Rewrite) 618.75

12/31/2021 12312021 brianbundy0000 Brian Bundy 1-10-02-5113 General-Administration-Operations-Services - Professional 800.00

12/31/2021 Annual Cell Phone Stiphend angiesprang0000 Angie Sprang 1-10-01-5060 General-Administration-Labor-Labor - Cell Phone Stipend 720.00

01/01/2022 18318 springsit Springs IT 1-20-02-5110 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Services - IT 500.00

01/01/2022 220043 CIRSA Cirsa 1-20-02-5107 General-Interdepartmental-Operations-Insurance - Property/Casualty Liability Premiums 22,554.21

      

Total For 1-00-00-2000 General-Accounts Payable 63,638.97

Jane Newberry, Mayor

Becky Frank, Town Manager



 TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 
Regular Board of Trustee Meeting 

December 07, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Board Members Present 
Mayor Jane Newberry 
Trustee Margaret Peterson 
Trustee Katharine Guthrie 
 
Town Manager 
Angie Sprang 
 
Town Clerk 
Vacant Position 
 
Administrative Assistant 
Vacant Position 

Board Members Absent 
Trustee Chris Quinn 
Trustee Sunde King 
 
Town Attorney 
Not present 
 
Public Works Department 
Not present 
 
Marshal’s Department 
Virgil Hodges 
 
Planning Department 
Not present 

 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Newberry called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. Pledge recited. 
 
2. Additions, Deletions, or Correction to the Agenda 
None. 
 
3. Consent Agenda 
The USA Pools Contract is approved for a 3 year term, gold level package with staff discretion to increase 
to the higher level package, and the opening and closing service. Regarding opening and closing the pool 
it is recognized that the pool company may not perform all duties such as patching and painting the pool 
surface.  
 
The summer parks maintenance proposal incorrectly notes bronc day maintenance in July and it should 
be in August.  
 
Trustee Guthrie motioned to approve the consent agenda with input noted. Seconded by Trustee 
Peterson. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
4. Executive Session: Pursuant to C.R.S § 24-6-402(f) for the Purpose of Personnel Matters, 

Specifically to Evaluate Applicants for Position of – Town Manager, and Pursuant to C.R.S § 24-6-
402(e) for The Purpose of Matters That May be Subject to Negotiations, Developing Strategy for 
Negotiations, and/or Instructing Negotiators  

Mayor Newberry motioned to enter Executive Session. Seconded by Trustee Peterson. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
5. Consideration of Resolution 2021-09, A Resolution of the Town of Green Mountain Falls, Colorado, 

Calling the Regular Election to be held on the 5th day of April 2022 



  
 

Mayor Pro Tem Peterson motioned to approve Resolution 2021-09, A Resolution of the Town of Green 
Mountain Falls, Colorado, Calling the Regular Election to be held on the 5th day of April 2022 as 
presented. Seconded by Trustee Guthrie. Motion passed unanimously.  
 
6. Consideration of Resolution 2021-10, A Resolution Levying General Property Taxes for the year 

2021, to Help Defray the Costs of Government for the Town of Green Mountain Falls, Colorado, 
for the 2022 Budget Year  

Trustee Guthrie motioned to approve Resolution 2021-10, A Resolution Levying General Property Taxes 
for the year 2021, to Help Defray the Costs of Government for the Town of Green Mountain Falls, 
Colorado, for the 2022 Budget Year as presented. Seconded by Trustee Guthrie. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
7. Consideration of Resolution 2021-11, A Resolution to Adopt the Town of Green Mountain Falls 

2022 Budget, A Resolution Summarizing Expenditures and Revenues for each Fund and Adopting a 
Budget for the Town of Green Mountain Falls Colorado for the Calendar Year Beginning on the 
First Day of January 2022, and Ending on the last day of December 2022  

Mayor Pro Tem Peterson motioned to approve Resolution 2021-10, A Resolution Levying General 
Property Taxes for the year 2021, to Help Defray the Costs of Government for the Town of Green 
Mountain Falls, Colorado, for the 2022 Budget Year as presented. Seconded by Trustee Guthrie. Motion 
passed unanimously.  
 
8. Consideration of Resolution 2021-12, A Resolution Adopting the Town of Green Mountain Falls 

2022 Fee Schedule 
Mayor Newberry motioned to approve Resolution 2021-12, A Resolution Adopting the Town of Green 
Mountain Falls 2022 Fee Schedule as presented. Seconded by Trustee Guthrie. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
9. Consideration of Resolution 2021-12, A Resolution Adopting the Town of Green Mountain Falls 

2022 Fee Schedule 
Mayor Newberry motioned to approve Consideration of Resolution 2021-12, A Resolution Adopting the 
Town of Green Mountain Falls 2022 Fee Schedule as presented.  
 
10. Consideration of Ordinance 2021-06, An Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of Town of Green 

Mountain Falls Repealing and Reenacting Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, and 15 of the Green 
Mountain Falls Municipal Code  

Mayor Newberry motioned to approve Ordinance 2021-06, An Ordinance of the Board of Trustees of 
Town of Green Mountain Falls Repealing and Reenacting Chapters 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11, and 15 of 
the Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code as presented. Seconded by Trustee Guthrie. Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
11. Zoom Discussion & Discussion of Sunshine Laws/Open Meeting Laws and Responsibilities of 

Committees 
Discussion ensued. Use of Zoom for Board of Trustee meetings is paused going forward.  
 
12. Reports 

 
13. Correspondence 
 
14. Persons Present Not on the Agenda: 3 Minutes Per Speaker 

 



  
 

17. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 09:04 pm. 
 
 
__________________________________  __________________________________ 
Nathan Scott, Town Clerk/Treasurer   Jane Newberry, Mayor  



 TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 
Regular Board of Trustee Meeting 

December 10, 2021 – 8:00 A.M. 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Board Members Present 
Mayor Jane Newberry 
Trustee Margaret Peterson 
Trustee Katharine Guthrie 
 
Town Manager 
Angie Sprang 
 
Town Clerk 
Vacant Position 
 
Administrative Assistant 
Vacant Position 

Board Members Absent 
Trustee Chris Quinn 
Trustee Sunde King 
 
Town Attorney 
Not present 
 
Public Works Department 
Not present 
 
Marshal’s Department 
Virgil Hodges 
 
Planning Department 
Not present 

 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Newberry called the meeting to order at 08:00 am. Pledge recited. 
 
2. Additions, Deletions, or Correction to the Agenda 
None. 
 
3. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Pro Tem Peterson motioned to approve the consent agenda. Seconded by Trustee Guthrie. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
4. Consideration of Resolution 2021-13, A Resolution of the Town of Green Mountain Falls Colorado 

Designating Authorized Signatories on Town Bank Accounts and Individuals Authorized to Conduct 
Online Banking on Behalf of the Town 

Manager Sprang reported that Nathan Scott accepted the Town Clerk/Treasurer position and will be 
added to the resolution under that position title.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peterson motioned to approve Resolution 2021-13, A Resolution of the Town of Green 
Mountain Falls Colorado Designating Authorized Signatories on Town Bank Accounts and Individuals 
Authorized to Conduct Online Banking on Behalf of the Town with edits. Seconded by Trustee Guthrie. 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 
5. Persons Present Not on the Agenda: 3 Minutes Per Speaker 

 
6. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 08:09 am. 
 
 
__________________________________  __________________________________ 
Nathan Scott, Town Clerk/Treasurer   Jane Newberry, Mayor  



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 
COLORADO, MAKING APPOINTMENT OF TOWN OFFICIALS 

 
 WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 31-4-304 requires the Town Board of Trustees to appoint a Clerk, 
Treasurer, and Town Attorney, as well as any other officers it deems necessary; 
 
 WHEREAS, C.R.S. § 31-4-304 further specifies that the appointment of officers shall not 
extend more than 30 days after compliance with C.R.S. § 31-4-401 by the members of the 
succeeding Board of Trustees; 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 2-21(b) of the Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code authorizes the 
Board of Trustees to appoint officers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in addition to the Clerk, Treasurer, and Attorney, the Board of Trustees 
desires to appoint a Town Manager and Marshal. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
Town Officials are appointed as follows: 
 
 Town Attorney – The Firm of Hoffmann, Parker, Wilson & Carberry, P.C.  
 Town Manager – Becky Frank 
 Town Marshal – Virgil Hodges 

Town Clerk/Treasurer – Nathan Scott 
 

INTRODUCED, READ and PASSED this 4th day of January, 2022. 
 
 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, 
 COLORADO 

   
     

______________________________ 
Jane Newberry, Mayor 

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________                                                          
Nathan Scott, Town Clerk/Treasurer 



 

Town of Green Mountain Falls, Colorado 
 

 

OATH OF OFFICE 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO   ) 

El PASO AND TELLER COUNTIES  ) 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS ) 

 

I, Nathan Scott, do affirm that I will support the constitution of the United States, 
the constitution of the state of Colorado, the laws of the state of Colorado, and the 
ordinances of the Town of Green Mountain Falls, and will faithfully perform the 
duties of the office of the Town Clerk/Treasurer of the Town of Green Mountain 
Falls upon which I am about to enter to the best of my ability. 

 

________________________________________ 

Nathan Scott, Town Clerk/Treasurer 

 

ATTEST: 

Subscribed and sworn before me this 4th day of January 2022. 

 

________________________________________ 

Jane Newberry, Mayor 



 

Town of Green Mountain Falls, Colorado 
 

 

OATH OF OFFICE 

 

 

STATE OF COLORADO   ) 

El PASO AND TELLER COUNTIES  ) 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS ) 

 

I, Becky Frank, do affirm that I will support the constitution of the United States, 
the constitution of the state of Colorado, the laws of the state of Colorado, and the 
ordinances of the Town of Green Mountain Falls, and will faithfully perform the 
duties of the office of the Town Manager of the Town of Green Mountain Falls 
upon which I am about to enter to the best of my ability. 

 

________________________________________ 

Becky Frank, Town Manager 

 

ATTEST: 

Subscribed and sworn before me this 4th day of January 2022. 

 

________________________________________ 

Nathan Scott, Town Clerk/Treasurer 



Parks, Recreation, and Trails Advisory Committee
Agenda Memorandum

DATE: 12.09.2021 AGENDA NO SUBJECT: PRT Recommendation to
Board to reopen Catamount Trail.Presented by: Jesse Stroope

Attachments: Press Release

Background
Catamount Trail was closed August 12th, 2021, due to a property dispute. Trail closed signage was put up on Hondo,
Belvedere and on the Catamount Trail. HGMFF has since purchased the land and is allowing hikers to use the
Catamount Trail once again.

PRT is recommending that the Board reopen Catamount Trail and remove all “Trail Closed” signage that is
associated with the closure.

Discussion

Recommended Motion
Move that the Catamount Trail be reopened due to resolution of land dispute and remove “Trail Closed” signage.

Alternative Options



From: Jennifer Ivey
To: Town Clerk; townclerk@calhan.co; jmorgan@manitouspringsco.gov; Jeff Parker; cityclerk@springsgov.com;

wmassey@coloradosprings.gov; Greenberg, Rebecca; carctb@elpasoco.com; Lori Seago;
DianaMay@elpasoco.com; Angie Sprang; Town Clerk; Cindy Tompkins

Cc: Rick Sonnenburg (rsonnenburg@ppacg.org); Beverly Majewski; Andrew Gunning
Subject: RE: PPRTA Fourth Amended and Restated Establishing IGA
Date: Monday, December 13, 2021 5:49:36 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
Establishing IGA 4th Amended and Restated (EXECUTED).pdf
2021-12-08 Resolution by PPRTA to include Calhan (SIGNED).pdf

PPRTA Board Members/Alternates and legal counsel and clerks of Member Governments (all board
members/alternates are included by bcc),
 
Please find attached for your records the fully executed Fourth Amended and Restated Establishing
IGA for the Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority.  I am also attaching for your records the
signed resolution of the Board of Directors of the PPRTA including the property within the Town of
Calhan into the boundaries of the PPRTA and adding the Town of Calhan as a party to the
Establishing IGA.  All member governments have already consented to the addition of the Town of
Calhan as a party to the Establishing IGA and the Establishing IGA contemplates that the addition of
property is a ministerial act not an amendment to the Establishing IGA.  As such, the addition of the
Town of Calhan will be formally memorialized in the text of the next Amended and Restated
Establishing IGA which would be required pending a successful capital renewal election in
November 2022.
 
Thank you to everyone for their efforts and hard work on this.
 
Jennifer
 
Jennifer L. Ivey
jivey@isp-law.com
Direct: 303.867.3003 Mobile: 810.287.1978
Facsimile: 303.292.9101
4725 South Monaco Street, Suite 360
Denver, Colorado 80237

ISP Web  Electronic (2)

     
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE
This message and any accompanying documents are intended only for the use of the intended addressee, and may contain information
that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is prohibited. If you have received this communication in
error, please notify the author immediately. Thank you.
 
From: Jennifer Ivey 
Sent: Wednesday, October 13, 2021 6:00 PM
To: clerk@gmfco.us; townclerk@calhan.co; jmorgan@manitouspringsco.gov; Jeff Parker
<jhparker@hpwclaw.com>; cityclerk@springsgov.com; wmassey@coloradosprings.gov; Greenberg,
Rebecca <Rebecca.Greenberg@coloradosprings.gov>; carctb@elpasoco.com; Lori Seago

mailto:jivey@isp-law.com
mailto:clerk@gmfco.us
mailto:townclerk@calhan.co
mailto:jmorgan@manitouspringsco.gov
mailto:jhparker@hpwclaw.com
mailto:cityclerk@springsgov.com
mailto:wmassey@coloradosprings.gov
mailto:Rebecca.Greenberg@coloradosprings.gov
mailto:carctb@elpasoco.com
mailto:LoriSeago@elpasoco.com
mailto:DianaMay@elpasoco.com
mailto:manager@gmfco.us
mailto:clerk@gmfco.us
mailto:townclerk@calhan.co
mailto:rsonnenburg@ppacg.org
mailto:bmajewski@ppacg.org
mailto:agunning@ppacg.org
mailto:jivey@isp-law.com





 


 


Fourth Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement 


Among El Paso County, Colorado, 


The City of Colorado Springs, The City of Manitou Springs, 


The Town of Green Mountain Falls, and The Town of Ramah Regarding the Pikes 


Peak Rural Transportation Authority 


 


Recitals 


 


A.  El Paso County, Colorado (hereinafter “County”) is a duly-organized county and 


political subdivision of the State of Colorado. 


  


B.  The City of Colorado Springs (hereinafter “Colo. Spgs.”) is a home-rule city and 


municipal corporation organized under Article XX, Section 6 of the Colorado 


Constitution. 


 


C.  The City of Manitou Springs (hereinafter “Manitou”) is a home-rule city and 


municipal corporation organized under Article XX, Section 6 of the Colorado 


Constitution. 


 


D.  The Town of Green Mountain Falls (hereinafter “GMF”) is a municipal corporation 


organized under Title 31 of the Colorado Revised Statutes. 


 


E.  The Town of Ramah (hereinafter “Ramah”) is a duly organized statutory town and 


political subdivision of the State of Colorado.  


 


F. County, Colo. Spgs., Manitou, GMF, Ramah, and any other party that is added to 


this Agreement on or after January 1, 2022 may be referred to collectively in this 


Agreement as “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 


 


G.  The Parties desire to improve funding for expansion and maintenance of regional 


transportation and transit systems within their jurisdictions, and desire to engage in 


these activities in a cooperative and comprehensive manner. 


 


H.  Whereas, in 2004, the Board of County Commissioners of El Paso County, 


Colorado (hereinafter “County Board”), the City Council of the City of Colorado 


Springs (hereinafter “Colo. Spgs. Council”), the City Council of the City of 


Manitou Springs (hereinafter “Manitou Council”), and the Board of Trustees of the 


Town of Green Mountain Falls (hereinafter “GMF Trustees”) mutually determined 


that the creation of a Rural Transportation Authority, authorized pursuant to 


Sections 43-4-601 et seq., C.R.S., would be the most effective method of 


accomplishing the desires of the Parties as reflected in this Agreement. 


 


I.  Whereas, the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou Council, and the 


GMF Trustees entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement for Creation of the 


Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority dated August 26, 2004.  


 







 


 


J. Whereas, effective January 1, 2009, Ramah was added as a Party to this Agreement 


and the territory within its boundaries was included into the Pikes Peak Rural 


Transportation Authority. 


 


K. Whereas, the Parties have concluded that it is in the best interest of the Parties and 


the public to amend the Agreement to reflect current circumstances and needs of 


the citizens of the Parties. 


 


THEREFORE, be it resolved by the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou 


Council, the GMF Trustees, and the Board of Trustees of the Town of Ramah (hereinafter 


“Ramah Trustees”) that the Parties, based on the mutual promises and considerations 


contained herein, agree as follows: 


 


Terms and Conditions of Agreement 


 


1.0  Authority to Enter Agreement. The Parties are authorized to enter into this 


Agreement pursuant to Sections 43-4-601 et seq., C.R.S. 


 


2.0  Creation, Name of Authority, and Members. The County Board, the Colo. Spgs. 


Council, the Manitou Council, and the GMF Trustees, established a rural 


transportation authority pursuant to Section 43-4-603(1), C.R.S. and upon approval 


of a majority of the voters residing in the County, Colo. Spgs., Manitou, and GMF 


at the general election held on November 2, 2004, established the Pikes Peak Rural 


Transportation Authority (A Regional Transportation Authority) (hereinafter the 


“Authority”).  Effective January 1, 2009, the territory within Ramah was included 


into the boundaries of the Authority and Ramah became a member of the Authority 


and Party to this Agreement.   


 


3.0  Political Subdivision. The Authority is a separate political subdivision and body 


corporate of the State of Colorado, and possesses all of the duties, privileges, 


immunities, rights, liabilities, and disabilities of a public body politic and corporate, 


as restricted by Section 7 of this Agreement. 


 


4.0 Purpose and Activities of the Authority. The purpose and activities of the 


Authority shall be limited to the funding of transportation capital improvements, 


maintenance and operations, and transit service within the Authority boundaries 


established in this Agreement. Such projects shall be compatible with established 


state and local transportation plans that transport or convey people or goods, or 


permit people or goods to be transported or conveyed, within or through El Paso 


County by any means. It is the intent of the Parties that funding from the Authority 


will not be used to substitute for or reduce Colo. Spgs.’ funding to the existing 


transit system, or to substitute for or reduce any Party’s funding for maintenance 


activities. 


 


4.1  The Parties agree, as the process for accomplishing the projects and 


activities funded though the Authority, that the Authority Board of 







 


 


Directors’ (hereinafter “PPRTA Board”) primary responsibility will be the 


management and disbursement of funds generated by the Authority, and the 


activities that support those functions. The PPRTA Board will determine 


annual appropriations and the order in which projects shall be funded for 


transportation capital improvements, in accordance with the applicable 


ballot language, November 2, 2004 or November 6, 2012, as amended by 


the November 7, 2017 ballot language, and based on recommendations from 


the Parties. Each Party shall determine the appropriation amounts for 


maintenance activities which are funded under this Agreement located 


within its boundaries (which for purposes of the County shall be all 


unincorporated areas of the County).  Colo. Spgs. shall determine the 


appropriation amounts for transit activities which are funded under this 


Agreement. The Authority shall implement the Authority’s transportation 


capital, maintenance, and transit projects through subsequent 


intergovernmental agreements between the Authority and the various 


Parties for the expenditure of Authority funds on behalf of the Authority. 


The Parties, in carrying out these intergovernmental agreements, may 


contract on the Authority’s behalf with other governments or private 


businesses to expend Authority funds for the purpose of implementing those 


projects. 


 


5.0  Allocation of Revenues. The Authority shall pay its administrative expenses from 


the gross revenue generated by the tax authorized under Section 7.2 of this 


Agreement.  Administrative expenses shall not exceed one percent (1%) of the 


gross revenue generated. All remaining funds, including earnings generated by such 


funds, shall be considered net revenue. The net revenue generated by the Authority 


shall be allocated to funding specific projects in the following percentages: 


 


5.1  Transportation capital improvements - fifty five percent (55%) of net 


revenue.  Such projects are specified in the applicable ballot language and 


the Authority shall not expend transportation capital improvement funds 


except in accordance with the applicable ballot language. This component 


was originally set to sunset ten (10) years after the first collection of the one 


percent (1%) sales tax approved by voters at the general election on 


November 2, 2004 (on December 31, 2014), but was extended for an 


additional ten (10) years by approval of the voters at the general election on 


November 6, 2012 (to sunset December 31, 2024), and amended by 


approval of the voters at the general election on November 7, 2017. 


 


5.1.1  Transportation capital improvement funds shall be distributed for 


the projects specified in the applicable ballot language and only in 


such amounts that will fund the entire Authority cost of each project, 


at such time and in such manner as shall be determined by the 


PPRTA Board.  Upon completion of the projects on the “A” list of 


the applicable ballot question, and in order to ensure each and every 


member will receive their proportionate share of funds received, 







 


 


allocation of funding in each calendar year for projects on the “B” 


list of the applicable ballot question shall be proportional to the 


population of the various members of the Authority.  These 


transportation capital improvement funding percentages shall be 


adjusted after each decennial Federal Census, effective January 1st 


of the year after the results of each decennial Federal Census are 


made available. 


 


5.1.2  Any funds from tax revenues generated before January 1, 2015 and 


remaining in the transportation capital improvement fund after 


December 31, 2014 shall be used to complete remaining listed 


transportation capital improvement projects from the November 2, 


2004 ballot language until such funds are depleted or until the 


Authority is terminated, whichever occurs first.  Any funds 


generated after December 31, 2014 and remaining in the 


transportation capital improvement fund after December 31, 2024 


shall be used to complete remaining listed transportation capital 


improvement projects from the November 6, 2012 ballot language 


as amended by the November 7, 2017 ballot language until such 


funds are depleted or until the Authority is terminated, whichever 


occurs first. 


 


5.1.3  Any Party joining this Agreement after January 1, 2005, is ineligible 


for transportation capital improvement funding as authorized by the 


November 2, 2004 ballot language.  Any Party joining this 


Agreement after January 1, 2013, is ineligible for transportation 


capital improvement funding as authorized by the November 6, 


2012 ballot language. 


 


5.2  Maintenance - thirty five percent (35%) of net revenue. Within this 


category, the funds will be allocated to each Party based on the most recent 


decennial Federal Census.   These maintenance funding percentages shall 


be adjusted after each decennial Federal Census, effective January 1st of the 


year after the results of each decennial Federal Census are made available, 


and shall be proportional to the population of the various members of the 


Authority.  The Authority shall not expend maintenance funds for any other 


purpose. 


 


5.2.1  The first funds available for use in maintenance activities shall be 


available on or after April 1, 2005. 


 


5.2.2  Upon acceptance of a new Party to this Agreement, the Authority 


shall adjust funding within this category to be proportional to the 


population of the various members of the Authority, using the most 


recent decennial Federal Census. Such adjustment must be 







 


 


completed prior to January 1st of the year following acceptance of a 


new Party to this Agreement. 


 


5.2.3  Following the sunset of the transportation capital improvements 


portion of the Authority sales and use tax (as referenced in Section 


5.1 of this Agreement), maintenance funding shall be allocated 


77.78% of the net revenue, divided in the percentages previously 


determined. 


 


5.3  Transit - ten percent (10%) of net revenue. Transit funds shall only be used 


to implement Colo. Spgs. sponsored transit activities. The Authority shall 


not expend transit funds for any other purpose. 


 


5.3.1  Transit funding shall be available for use on or after April 1, 2005. 


 


5.3.2  Any Party joining this Agreement after January 1, 2005 is ineligible 


for transit funding.   However, those Parties may receive transit 


service provided by Colo. Spgs. 


 


5.3.3  Following the sunset of the transportation capital improvements 


portion of the Authority sales and use tax (as referenced in Section 


5.1 of this Agreement), transit funding shall be allocated 22.22% of 


the net revenue. 


 


6.0  Board of Directors. The PPRTA Board is vested with all legislative and 


management power of the Authority. 


 


6.1  The PPRTA Board shall consist of three (3) Directors appointed by the 


County Board, who shall be County Commissioners; three (3) Directors 


appointed by the Colo. Spgs. Council, who shall be Colo. Spgs. 


Councilmembers; one (1) Director appointed by the Manitou Council, who 


shall be a Manitou Councilmember; one (1) Director appointed by the GMF 


Trustees, who shall be a Board member/Trustee; and one (1) Director 


appointed by the Ramah Trustees, who shall be a Board member/Trustee. 


The various boards and councils shall select and appoint their Directors in 


any lawful manner determined by the respective Board or Council, provided 


such Director is eligible for appointment under Section 6.3 of this 


Agreement. The PPRTA Board shall continue to consist of three (3) County 


Directors, three (3) Colo. Spgs. Directors, one (1) Manitou Director, one (1) 


GMF Director, and one (1) Ramah Director until modified as provided in 


Section 6.2. 


 


6.2  Additional Directors of the PPRTA Board shall be appointed by the 


governing body of any Party which joins this Agreement, or if the State of 


Colorado joins this Agreement, such member shall be appointed by the 


Governor of the State of Colorado. Any new Party or the State of Colorado 







 


 


shall be entitled to appoint one (1) Director to the PPRTA Board upon 


joining this Agreement.   Any director appointed by the State of Colorado 


shall be a non-voting member. 


 


6.3  Any City Councilmember, County Commissioner, or Town Board 


member/Trustee of a Party may be appointed by that Party’s governing 


board to the PPRTA Board.   If the State of Colorado becomes a Party, the 


Governor may appoint any elector of the State of Colorado to the PPRTA 


Board. 


 


6.4  All Authority Directors shall serve without compensation. 


 


6.5  The term of office for an individual Authority Director shall be one (1) year, 


and all terms shall commence on January 1st and terminate on December 


31st of each calendar year. Any Director appointed by the Governor of the 


State of Colorado shall serve such term as may be specified by the 


Governor. 


 


6.6  Any Director may be removed from the PPRTA Board by a majority vote 


of the members of the governing body appointing such Director to the 


PPRTA Board. Any Director may voluntarily resign from the PPRTA 


Board. 


 


6.7  Any vacancies on the PPRTA Board shall be filled by the appointing body 


in such manner as it may determine, provided such Director is eligible for 


appointment under Section 6.3 of this Agreement, but in any event, within 


thirty (30) days of the creation of a vacancy. 


 


6.8  A Director shall disqualify himself or herself from voting on any issue with 


respect to which the Director has a conflict of interest, unless the Director 


has disclosed the conflict of interest in compliance with Section 18-8-308, 


C.R.S.  


 


6.9 Any Party may name an alternate Director who may vote in place of any 


absent or disqualified Director. 


 


6.10  The PPRTA Board shall elect the following officers upon its formation, and 


thereafter at its first meeting of each calendar year: 


 


6.10.1  Chairperson, a Director who shall preside over all meetings of the 


PPRTA Board, may sign all contracts and agreements of the 


Authority, and in general shall perform all duties incident to the 


office of Chairperson and such other duties as may be prescribed by 


the Bylaws of the Authority or by the PPRTA Board. 


 







 


 


6.10.2  Vice-Chairperson, a Director who shall serve as Chairperson, in 


the Chairperson’s absence or during the Chairperson’s inability to 


act. The Vice-Chairperson shall have such other duties as may be 


defined by the Bylaws of the Authority or by the PPRTA Board. 


 


6.11  In addition, the PPRTA Board shall appoint a Secretary, who shall keep a 


written record of the minutes of all meetings, ensure that all notices required 


by law are duly given, shall serve as the custodian of Authority records, 


shall attest to documents as the need arises, and shall perform such other 


functions as may be prescribed by the Bylaws of the Authority or by the 


PPRTA Board. The Secretary may be an employee of the PPRTA Board, 


an independent contractor, or a volunteer. 


 


6.12  The Authority officers shall be elected by a majority vote of all Directors. 


 


6.13  The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson positions shall not be held by 


persons appointed by the same governmental body. Only Directors 


appointed by Colo. Spgs. or the County are eligible for selection as 


Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson. 


 


6.14  The PPRTA Board shall meet no less than twice per calendar year. Meetings 


will be held at the Pikes Peak Area Council of Governments offices, or such 


other location as may from time to time be designated by the PPRTA Board. 


Notice of meetings shall be posted in such place and manner as determined 


by the Bylaws of the Authority, in accordance with the Colorado Open 


Meetings Law, Sections 24-6-401 et seq., C.R.S. 


 


6.15  A majority of the PPRTA Board shall constitute a quorum. No official 


action shall be taken by the PPRTA Board unless a quorum is present at a 


meeting. Any action taken by the PPRTA Board shall be approved by a 


simple majority of the total number of votes assigned to those Directors 


present and voting, except as may otherwise be provided for in this 


Agreement. Directors appointed by the County Board and the Colo. Spgs. 


Council shall each be assigned one (1) vote.  Directors appointed by the 


Manitou Council, the GMF Trustees, the Ramah Trustees, and any 


governing body of a Party joining on or after January 1, 2022 shall each be 


assigned a vote calculated as follows: three (3) divided by the current 


number of Parties to the Agreement other than the County and Colo. Spgs.  


By way of example, as of January 1, 2021 this formula would yield 3 / 3 = 


1 vote each.  If one additional Party joins this Agreement this formula would 


yield 3 / 4 = 0.75 vote each.   Any Director appointed by the Governor of 


the State of Colorado shall not be counted towards quorum requirements 


and shall not vote on any action.  


 


6.16  The PPRTA Board may promulgate policies and procedures that govern its 


conduct. 







 


 


 


6.17  The proceedings of the PPRTA Board shall comply with all provisions of 


the Colorado Open Meetings Law, Sections 24-6-401 et seq., C.R.S., and 


shall provide opportunities for public input by, at minimum, permitting the 


public to address the PPRTA Board in open meetings. The PPRTA Board 


shall adopt procedures for calling emergency meetings. 


 


6.18  The PPRTA Board shall appoint a citizen advisory or citizen oversight 


committee and define the duties thereof. 


 


6.19  Board Powers. The PPRTA Board may exercise the following powers: 


 


6.19.1 Adoption of such bylaws as it deems necessary; 


 


6.19.2  Fixing the time and place of meetings and the method of providing 


notice of such meetings; 


 


6.19.3  Making and passing such orders and resolutions necessary for the 


government and management of the affairs of the Authority and the 


execution of the Authority’s powers; 


 


6.19.4  Adoption and use of a seal; 


 


6.19.5  Maintaining offices at such place or places as the PPRTA Board may 


designate; 


 


6.19.6  Contracting for professional services as deemed necessary to 


administer and implement the purposes of this Agreement; 


 


6.19.7  Prescribing methods for auditing and allowing or rejecting claims 


and demands, or for acquisition of equipment; and  


 


6.19.8  Exercising all rights and powers necessary or incidental to or 


implied from the specific powers granted by this Agreement. 


 


6.20  Annual Audit.  The PPRTA Board shall provide for an annual financial 


audit. 


 


7.0  Powers of the Authority. The Authority, acting through the PPRTA Board, shall 


have only the following powers: 


 


7.1  To fund transportation capital improvements, maintenance and operations, 


and transit services, within the boundaries of the Authority, as restricted by 


Section 5 of this Agreement, using funds obtained pursuant to Section 7.2, 


below, based on annual recommendations from the Parties, and consistent 


with Section 5.1 of this Agreement; 







 


 


 


7.2  In accordance with the approval of a majority of voters residing within the 


boundaries of the Authority on November 2, 2004 and November 6, 2012, 


to levy sales and use taxes at a rate of one percent (1%). Following the 


sunset of the capital transportation improvement portion of the Authority 


sales and use tax (as referenced in Section 5.1 of this Agreement), the 


Authority shall levy forty-five one-hundredths of one percent (0.45%) sales 


and use taxes, for the purposes of maintenance, operations, and transit; 


 


7.3  To invest or deposit any revenue as provided for by Section 43-4-616, 


C.R.S.; 


 


7.4  To sue and to be sued; 


 


7.5  To have perpetual existence; 


 


7.6  To enter into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the Authority; 


 


7.7  To fund, construct, operate, or maintain rural transportation systems (now 


regional transportation systems) within the Authority’s boundaries; 


 


7.8  To purchase, trade, exchange, acquire, buy, sell, lease, lease with an option 


to purchase, dispose of, and encumber real or personal property and any 


interest therein including easements and rights-of-way; 


 


7.9  To accept real or personal property for the use of the Authority and to accept 


gifts and conveyances upon the terms and conditions as the PPRTA Board 


may approve; 


 


7.10  To contract with a person or persons to assist the PPRTA Board with 


administrative, accounting, and financial services which may be required to 


carry out the duties enumerated in this Agreement, or to contract with any 


person or persons authorized under Section 6.19.6 of this Agreement. The 


Parties intend for the Authority to contract with the Pikes Peak Area Council 


of Governments to provide these administrative and accounting services, as 


well as a PPRTA Board secretary and a financial officer; and 


 


7.11  In no event shall the Authority be authorized to exercise the power of 


eminent domain, issue bonds, impose motor vehicle registration fees, or 


impose any visitor benefit tax that may otherwise be permitted under law. 


The Authority shall not accept any Highway User Tax Funds from the State 


of Colorado. 


 


8.0 Boundaries. The legal boundaries of the Authority are as follows: 


 







 


 


8.1  All unincorporated areas within the boundaries of El Paso County, 


Colorado; 


 


8.2  The corporate limits of the City of Colorado Springs, as comprised on 


January 1, 2005, and as may be comprised in the future; 


 


8.3  The corporate limits of the City of Manitou Springs, as comprised on 


January 1, 2005, and as may be comprised in the future; 


 


8.4  The corporate limits of the Town of Green Mountain Falls, as comprised on 


January 1, 2005, and as may be comprised in the future; 


 


8.5  The corporate limits of the Town of Ramah, as comprised on January 1, 


2009, and as may be comprised in the future; and 


 


8.7 Additional territory shall be included in, or excluded from, the Authority 


boundaries by following the procedures in Section 12 of this Agreement. 


 


9.0  Effective Date. This Agreement first became effective upon certification by the 


State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs, Division of Local Government 


pursuant to Section 43-4-603(1), C.R.S., after the approval of the majority of the 


voters residing in the County, Colo. Spgs., Manitou, and GMF, at the general 


election held on November 2, 2004. The First Amended and Restated 


Intergovernmental Agreement became effective upon approval and execution by 


the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou Council, the GMF 


Trustees, and the Ramah Trustees and passage of the ballot measure certified by 


the PPRTA Board for the November 6, 2012 election.  The Second Amended and 


Restated Intergovernmental Agreement became effective upon approval and 


execution by the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou Council, the 


GMF Trustees, and the Ramah Trustees and passage of the ballot measure certified 


by the PPRTA Board for the November 7, 2017 election.  The Third Amended and 


Restated Intergovernmental Agreement shall become effective upon approval and 


execution by the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou Council, the 


GMF Trustees, and the Ramah Trustees.  The Agreement shall continue in full force 


and effect until terminated.   


 


9.1  The Agreement may be terminated only upon the unanimous agreement of 


the Parties. Such agreement shall be expressed by vote of the governing 


bodies of every signatory to the Agreement. Such vote must be approved by 


unanimous consent of the membership of each governing body.  The 


Authority shall continue for a period of ninety (90) days following the final 


vote to terminate the Agreement, at which time the Authority and the 


Agreement shall be terminated. 


 


10.0 Disposition of Assets Upon Termination. The State of Colorado is ineligible for 


any distribution of property under this Section. Upon any termination of the 







 


 


Authority pursuant to Section 9, the following method shall be used to distribute, 


dispose of, or divide the assets of the Authority: 


 


10.1  Any real property interest or fixtures to real property shall become the 


property of the Party in whose jurisdiction such real estate or fixture is 


located. If property is located within a jurisdiction that is no longer a Party 


to the Agreement, it shall become the property of the County. 


 


10.2  Any personal property shall be liquidated at auction, and the proceeds from 


such sale shall be combined with any cash in the Authority’s accounts. Such 


funds shall be divided among the Parties to the Agreement based upon the 


number of persons residing in the jurisdiction of each Party, relative to the 


total number of persons residing in the Authority’s boundaries, expressed 


as a percentage. 


 


10.3  Any other property not addressed above shall be distributed to one or more 


Parties to the Agreement, as determined by the PPRTA Board members 


prior to termination of the Authority. 


 


11.0  Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement may be amended upon the 


unanimous consent of all Parties. Such consent shall be manifested by a two-thirds 


affirmative vote of the membership of the governing body of each Party.  This 


Section is inapplicable to additions or deletions of territory under Section 12 of the 


Agreement. Section 9.1 of this Agreement may only be amended by a unanimous 


vote of the membership of the governing body of each Party. 


 


12.0  Addition or Deletion of Parties and Territory to this Agreement. 


 


12.1  Any municipality (as defined by Section 31-1-101(6), C.R.S.), or any 


county organized under the laws of the State of Colorado, may request to 


become a Party to this Agreement and a member of the Authority. 


 


12.2  An entity described in Section 12.1 may request to be added as a Party to 


this Agreement, and its corporate boundaries to be added to the territory of 


the Authority, upon a majority vote by the governing body of such 


municipality or county. The governing body shall place the matter on the 


ballot for approval of a majority of voters residing in such jurisdiction at 


any general or special election requesting approval to join the Authority. 


 


12.3  In no event shall an additional municipality or county become a Party to this 


Agreement without the unanimous consent of the existing Parties. Such 


assent shall be determined by a majority vote of the governing bodies of 


each existing Party. 


 


12.4  Any Party may terminate its participation in the Authority by passage of a 


resolution of the governing body of the political subdivision, provided such 







 


 


resolution is passed by a two-thirds majority of the membership of the 


governing body. 


 


12.4.1  In no event may a Party withdraw from the Agreement which, if 


such withdrawal were effective, would result in fewer members than 


one (1) county and one (1) municipality, two (2) municipalities, or 


two (2) counties. In such cases, termination of the Authority is 


appropriate and must be pursued as provided for in this Agreement. 


 


12.5  The PPRTA Board shall take the following actions to include Parties and 


additional territory within the Authority, or prior to deleting any Party and 


territory from the Authority: 


 


12.5.1  Notice of the proposed inclusion or exclusion shall be published in 


a newspaper of general circulation within the Authority boundaries.  


Such notice shall be mailed to the State of Colorado Department of 


Local Affairs, Division of Local Government; to the Colorado 


Transportation Commission; and to the owners of all property to be 


included or excluded at the last known address described for the 


owners in the real estate records of the county in which the property 


is located. 


 


12.5.2  Such notice shall describe the property to be included or excluded, 


shall specify the date, time, and place at which the PPRTA Board 


shall hold a public hearing on the proposed inclusion or exclusion, 


and shall state that persons objecting to the inclusion or exclusion 


may appear at the public hearing to object to the proposed inclusion 


or exclusion. The date of public hearing shall not be less than twenty 


(20) days after the mailing and publication of the notice. 


 


12.5.3  The PPRTA Board shall, on the date and at the time specified, hear 


all objections to the proposed inclusion or exclusion. 


 


12.5.4  The PPRTA Board may adopt a resolution including or excluding 


the described property upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the 


total number of votes assigned to the Directors (i.e. upon six (6) 


affirmative votes. The PPRTA Board shall file the resolution with 


the Director of the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs, 


Division of Local Government. 


 


12.5.5  The PPRTA Board may adjust the territory of the Authority as listed 


in Section 8 following approval under this Section as a ministerial 


act, and such act shall not constitute an amendment of this 


Agreement under Section 11. 


 















12.6 Inclusion or exclusion of Parties and territory shall be effective on January
1st of the year following the passage and filing of a resolution as required
by Section 12.5.4 of this Agreement.


WITNESS the signatures of the authorized representatives to the Parties to this Agreement,
as set forth below:


EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO CITY OF COLORADO SPRINGS


Stan VanderWerf, Chair John,,. Suthers, Mayor
Board of County Commissioners
Date:


_________________


Date:


_________________


CITY OF MANITOU SPRINGS TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS


John Graham, Mayor Jane Newberry, Mayor
Date:


_____________________


Date:


_____________________


TOWN OF RAMAH


Dennis Carpenter, Mayor
Date:


____________________


ATTESTED TO:


________________________


El Paso County Clerk and Recorder Colorado Springs City Clerk


Manitou Springs City Clerk Green Mountain Falls Town Clerk


Ramah Town Clerk







APPROVED AS TO FORM:


El Paso County Attorney CdoSpringsitytorney


Manitou Springs City Attorney Green Mountain Falls Town Attorney


Ramah Town Attorney















12.10.21







APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
El Paso County Attorney   Colorado Springs City Attorney 
 


                         
             
Manitou Springs City Attorney  Green Mountain Falls Town Attorney 
 


 
       
Ramah Town Attorney    











APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
El Paso County Attorney   Colorado Springs City Attorney 
 


                         
             
Manitou Springs City Attorney  Green Mountain Falls Town Attorney 
 


 
       
Ramah Town Attorney    
























<LoriSeago@elpasoco.com>; DianaMay@elpasoco.com
Cc: Rick Sonnenburg (rsonnenburg@ppacg.org) <rsonnenburg@ppacg.org>; Beverly Majewski
<bmajewski@ppacg.org>; Andrew Gunning <agunning@ppacg.org>
Subject: PPRTA Fourth Amended and Restated Establishing IGA
 
PPRTA Board Members/Alternates and legal counsel and clerks of Member Governments (all board
members/alternates are included by bcc),
 
At today’s Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority (PPRTA) Board of Directors meeting the
Board approved a proposed Fourth Amended and Restated Establishing IGA to be referred out to the
Member Governments for approval.  This Fourth Amended and Restated Establishing IGA revises
language regarding the number of votes assigned to each member of the PPRTA’s Board of
Directors in order to maintain the current ratio of 3 votes for the board members representing the
City of Colorado Springs, 3 votes for the board members representing El Paso County, and 3 votes
allocated evenly to the board member presenting each of the other jurisdictions.
 
The two attached versions (“redlined” and “clean”) of the PPRTA Fourth Amended and Restated
Establishing IGA were approved by the PPRTA Board of Directors this week to be referred to its
member jurisdictions for review and submission to the governing body for approval.  The redlined
version shows the changes from the Third Amended and Restated Establishing IGA.
 
The PPRTA requests that each of its member governments approve this Fourth Amended and
Restated Establishing IGA as soon as possible, but not later than January 1, 2022.
 
Each member government needs to approve the a Fourth Amended and Restated Establishing IGA
with a minimum of two-thirds of the total membership of each member government’s governing
body.   Please verify your local processes for consideration of the revised IGA and please advise
Rick Sonnenburg and me of the date set for consideration of the Fourth Amended and Restated
Establishing IGA by your member government.
 
For the Clerks of the member governments: The PPRTA requests a copy of the approved resolution
or minutes of the official action confirming the approval of the Fourth Amended and Restated
Establishing IGA as well as the specific vote count of the entire membership of your governing
body. 
 
Thank you for your assistance in this approval process and please contact me or Rick Sonnenburg
with any questions.
 
Jennifer
 
 
Jennifer L. Ivey
jivey@isp-law.com
Direct: 303.867.3003 Mobile: 810.287.1978
Facsimile: 303.292.9101
4725 South Monaco Street, Suite 360
Denver, Colorado 80237

mailto:jivey@isp-law.com


 

 

Fourth Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement 

Among El Paso County, Colorado, 

The City of Colorado Springs, The City of Manitou Springs, 

The Town of Green Mountain Falls, and The Town of Ramah Regarding the Pikes 

Peak Rural Transportation Authority 

 

Recitals 

 

A.  El Paso County, Colorado (hereinafter “County”) is a duly-organized county and 

political subdivision of the State of Colorado. 

  

B.  The City of Colorado Springs (hereinafter “Colo. Spgs.”) is a home-rule city and 

municipal corporation organized under Article XX, Section 6 of the Colorado 

Constitution. 

 

C.  The City of Manitou Springs (hereinafter “Manitou”) is a home-rule city and 

municipal corporation organized under Article XX, Section 6 of the Colorado 

Constitution. 

 

D.  The Town of Green Mountain Falls (hereinafter “GMF”) is a municipal corporation 

organized under Title 31 of the Colorado Revised Statutes. 

 

E.  The Town of Ramah (hereinafter “Ramah”) is a duly organized statutory town and 

political subdivision of the State of Colorado.  

 

F. County, Colo. Spgs., Manitou, GMF, Ramah, and any other party that is added to 

this Agreement on or after January 1, 2022 may be referred to collectively in this 

Agreement as “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 

 

G.  The Parties desire to improve funding for expansion and maintenance of regional 

transportation and transit systems within their jurisdictions, and desire to engage in 

these activities in a cooperative and comprehensive manner. 

 

H.  Whereas, in 2004, the Board of County Commissioners of El Paso County, 

Colorado (hereinafter “County Board”), the City Council of the City of Colorado 

Springs (hereinafter “Colo. Spgs. Council”), the City Council of the City of 

Manitou Springs (hereinafter “Manitou Council”), and the Board of Trustees of the 

Town of Green Mountain Falls (hereinafter “GMF Trustees”) mutually determined 

that the creation of a Rural Transportation Authority, authorized pursuant to 

Sections 43-4-601 et seq., C.R.S., would be the most effective method of 

accomplishing the desires of the Parties as reflected in this Agreement. 

 

I.  Whereas, the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou Council, and the 

GMF Trustees entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement for Creation of the 

Pikes Peak Rural Transportation Authority dated August 26, 2004.  

 



 

 

J. Whereas, effective January 1, 2009, Ramah was added as a Party to this Agreement 

and the territory within its boundaries was included into the Pikes Peak Rural 

Transportation Authority. 

 

K. Whereas, the Parties have concluded that it is in the best interest of the Parties and 

the public to amend the Agreement to reflect current circumstances and needs of 

the citizens of the Parties. 

 

THEREFORE, be it resolved by the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou 

Council, the GMF Trustees, and the Board of Trustees of the Town of Ramah (hereinafter 

“Ramah Trustees”) that the Parties, based on the mutual promises and considerations 

contained herein, agree as follows: 

 

Terms and Conditions of Agreement 

 

1.0  Authority to Enter Agreement. The Parties are authorized to enter into this 

Agreement pursuant to Sections 43-4-601 et seq., C.R.S. 

 

2.0  Creation, Name of Authority, and Members. The County Board, the Colo. Spgs. 

Council, the Manitou Council, and the GMF Trustees, established a rural 

transportation authority pursuant to Section 43-4-603(1), C.R.S. and upon approval 

of a majority of the voters residing in the County, Colo. Spgs., Manitou, and GMF 

at the general election held on November 2, 2004, established the Pikes Peak Rural 

Transportation Authority (A Regional Transportation Authority) (hereinafter the 

“Authority”).  Effective January 1, 2009, the territory within Ramah was included 

into the boundaries of the Authority and Ramah became a member of the Authority 

and Party to this Agreement.   

 

3.0  Political Subdivision. The Authority is a separate political subdivision and body 

corporate of the State of Colorado, and possesses all of the duties, privileges, 

immunities, rights, liabilities, and disabilities of a public body politic and corporate, 

as restricted by Section 7 of this Agreement. 

 

4.0 Purpose and Activities of the Authority. The purpose and activities of the 

Authority shall be limited to the funding of transportation capital improvements, 

maintenance and operations, and transit service within the Authority boundaries 

established in this Agreement. Such projects shall be compatible with established 

state and local transportation plans that transport or convey people or goods, or 

permit people or goods to be transported or conveyed, within or through El Paso 

County by any means. It is the intent of the Parties that funding from the Authority 

will not be used to substitute for or reduce Colo. Spgs.’ funding to the existing 

transit system, or to substitute for or reduce any Party’s funding for maintenance 

activities. 

 

4.1  The Parties agree, as the process for accomplishing the projects and 

activities funded though the Authority, that the Authority Board of 



 

 

Directors’ (hereinafter “PPRTA Board”) primary responsibility will be the 

management and disbursement of funds generated by the Authority, and the 

activities that support those functions. The PPRTA Board will determine 

annual appropriations and the order in which projects shall be funded for 

transportation capital improvements, in accordance with the applicable 

ballot language, November 2, 2004 or November 6, 2012, as amended by 

the November 7, 2017 ballot language, and based on recommendations from 

the Parties. Each Party shall determine the appropriation amounts for 

maintenance activities which are funded under this Agreement located 

within its boundaries (which for purposes of the County shall be all 

unincorporated areas of the County).  Colo. Spgs. shall determine the 

appropriation amounts for transit activities which are funded under this 

Agreement. The Authority shall implement the Authority’s transportation 

capital, maintenance, and transit projects through subsequent 

intergovernmental agreements between the Authority and the various 

Parties for the expenditure of Authority funds on behalf of the Authority. 

The Parties, in carrying out these intergovernmental agreements, may 

contract on the Authority’s behalf with other governments or private 

businesses to expend Authority funds for the purpose of implementing those 

projects. 

 

5.0  Allocation of Revenues. The Authority shall pay its administrative expenses from 

the gross revenue generated by the tax authorized under Section 7.2 of this 

Agreement.  Administrative expenses shall not exceed one percent (1%) of the 

gross revenue generated. All remaining funds, including earnings generated by such 

funds, shall be considered net revenue. The net revenue generated by the Authority 

shall be allocated to funding specific projects in the following percentages: 

 

5.1  Transportation capital improvements - fifty five percent (55%) of net 

revenue.  Such projects are specified in the applicable ballot language and 

the Authority shall not expend transportation capital improvement funds 

except in accordance with the applicable ballot language. This component 

was originally set to sunset ten (10) years after the first collection of the one 

percent (1%) sales tax approved by voters at the general election on 

November 2, 2004 (on December 31, 2014), but was extended for an 

additional ten (10) years by approval of the voters at the general election on 

November 6, 2012 (to sunset December 31, 2024), and amended by 

approval of the voters at the general election on November 7, 2017. 

 

5.1.1  Transportation capital improvement funds shall be distributed for 

the projects specified in the applicable ballot language and only in 

such amounts that will fund the entire Authority cost of each project, 

at such time and in such manner as shall be determined by the 

PPRTA Board.  Upon completion of the projects on the “A” list of 

the applicable ballot question, and in order to ensure each and every 

member will receive their proportionate share of funds received, 



 

 

allocation of funding in each calendar year for projects on the “B” 

list of the applicable ballot question shall be proportional to the 

population of the various members of the Authority.  These 

transportation capital improvement funding percentages shall be 

adjusted after each decennial Federal Census, effective January 1st 

of the year after the results of each decennial Federal Census are 

made available. 

 

5.1.2  Any funds from tax revenues generated before January 1, 2015 and 

remaining in the transportation capital improvement fund after 

December 31, 2014 shall be used to complete remaining listed 

transportation capital improvement projects from the November 2, 

2004 ballot language until such funds are depleted or until the 

Authority is terminated, whichever occurs first.  Any funds 

generated after December 31, 2014 and remaining in the 

transportation capital improvement fund after December 31, 2024 

shall be used to complete remaining listed transportation capital 

improvement projects from the November 6, 2012 ballot language 

as amended by the November 7, 2017 ballot language until such 

funds are depleted or until the Authority is terminated, whichever 

occurs first. 

 

5.1.3  Any Party joining this Agreement after January 1, 2005, is ineligible 

for transportation capital improvement funding as authorized by the 

November 2, 2004 ballot language.  Any Party joining this 

Agreement after January 1, 2013, is ineligible for transportation 

capital improvement funding as authorized by the November 6, 

2012 ballot language. 

 

5.2  Maintenance - thirty five percent (35%) of net revenue. Within this 

category, the funds will be allocated to each Party based on the most recent 

decennial Federal Census.   These maintenance funding percentages shall 

be adjusted after each decennial Federal Census, effective January 1st of the 

year after the results of each decennial Federal Census are made available, 

and shall be proportional to the population of the various members of the 

Authority.  The Authority shall not expend maintenance funds for any other 

purpose. 

 

5.2.1  The first funds available for use in maintenance activities shall be 

available on or after April 1, 2005. 

 

5.2.2  Upon acceptance of a new Party to this Agreement, the Authority 

shall adjust funding within this category to be proportional to the 

population of the various members of the Authority, using the most 

recent decennial Federal Census. Such adjustment must be 



 

 

completed prior to January 1st of the year following acceptance of a 

new Party to this Agreement. 

 

5.2.3  Following the sunset of the transportation capital improvements 

portion of the Authority sales and use tax (as referenced in Section 

5.1 of this Agreement), maintenance funding shall be allocated 

77.78% of the net revenue, divided in the percentages previously 

determined. 

 

5.3  Transit - ten percent (10%) of net revenue. Transit funds shall only be used 

to implement Colo. Spgs. sponsored transit activities. The Authority shall 

not expend transit funds for any other purpose. 

 

5.3.1  Transit funding shall be available for use on or after April 1, 2005. 

 

5.3.2  Any Party joining this Agreement after January 1, 2005 is ineligible 

for transit funding.   However, those Parties may receive transit 

service provided by Colo. Spgs. 

 

5.3.3  Following the sunset of the transportation capital improvements 

portion of the Authority sales and use tax (as referenced in Section 

5.1 of this Agreement), transit funding shall be allocated 22.22% of 

the net revenue. 

 

6.0  Board of Directors. The PPRTA Board is vested with all legislative and 

management power of the Authority. 

 

6.1  The PPRTA Board shall consist of three (3) Directors appointed by the 

County Board, who shall be County Commissioners; three (3) Directors 

appointed by the Colo. Spgs. Council, who shall be Colo. Spgs. 

Councilmembers; one (1) Director appointed by the Manitou Council, who 

shall be a Manitou Councilmember; one (1) Director appointed by the GMF 

Trustees, who shall be a Board member/Trustee; and one (1) Director 

appointed by the Ramah Trustees, who shall be a Board member/Trustee. 

The various boards and councils shall select and appoint their Directors in 

any lawful manner determined by the respective Board or Council, provided 

such Director is eligible for appointment under Section 6.3 of this 

Agreement. The PPRTA Board shall continue to consist of three (3) County 

Directors, three (3) Colo. Spgs. Directors, one (1) Manitou Director, one (1) 

GMF Director, and one (1) Ramah Director until modified as provided in 

Section 6.2. 

 

6.2  Additional Directors of the PPRTA Board shall be appointed by the 

governing body of any Party which joins this Agreement, or if the State of 

Colorado joins this Agreement, such member shall be appointed by the 

Governor of the State of Colorado. Any new Party or the State of Colorado 



 

 

shall be entitled to appoint one (1) Director to the PPRTA Board upon 

joining this Agreement.   Any director appointed by the State of Colorado 

shall be a non-voting member. 

 

6.3  Any City Councilmember, County Commissioner, or Town Board 

member/Trustee of a Party may be appointed by that Party’s governing 

board to the PPRTA Board.   If the State of Colorado becomes a Party, the 

Governor may appoint any elector of the State of Colorado to the PPRTA 

Board. 

 

6.4  All Authority Directors shall serve without compensation. 

 

6.5  The term of office for an individual Authority Director shall be one (1) year, 

and all terms shall commence on January 1st and terminate on December 

31st of each calendar year. Any Director appointed by the Governor of the 

State of Colorado shall serve such term as may be specified by the 

Governor. 

 

6.6  Any Director may be removed from the PPRTA Board by a majority vote 

of the members of the governing body appointing such Director to the 

PPRTA Board. Any Director may voluntarily resign from the PPRTA 

Board. 

 

6.7  Any vacancies on the PPRTA Board shall be filled by the appointing body 

in such manner as it may determine, provided such Director is eligible for 

appointment under Section 6.3 of this Agreement, but in any event, within 

thirty (30) days of the creation of a vacancy. 

 

6.8  A Director shall disqualify himself or herself from voting on any issue with 

respect to which the Director has a conflict of interest, unless the Director 

has disclosed the conflict of interest in compliance with Section 18-8-308, 

C.R.S.  

 

6.9 Any Party may name an alternate Director who may vote in place of any 

absent or disqualified Director. 

 

6.10  The PPRTA Board shall elect the following officers upon its formation, and 

thereafter at its first meeting of each calendar year: 

 

6.10.1  Chairperson, a Director who shall preside over all meetings of the 

PPRTA Board, may sign all contracts and agreements of the 

Authority, and in general shall perform all duties incident to the 

office of Chairperson and such other duties as may be prescribed by 

the Bylaws of the Authority or by the PPRTA Board. 

 



 

 

6.10.2  Vice-Chairperson, a Director who shall serve as Chairperson, in 

the Chairperson’s absence or during the Chairperson’s inability to 

act. The Vice-Chairperson shall have such other duties as may be 

defined by the Bylaws of the Authority or by the PPRTA Board. 

 

6.11  In addition, the PPRTA Board shall appoint a Secretary, who shall keep a 

written record of the minutes of all meetings, ensure that all notices required 

by law are duly given, shall serve as the custodian of Authority records, 

shall attest to documents as the need arises, and shall perform such other 

functions as may be prescribed by the Bylaws of the Authority or by the 

PPRTA Board. The Secretary may be an employee of the PPRTA Board, 

an independent contractor, or a volunteer. 

 

6.12  The Authority officers shall be elected by a majority vote of all Directors. 

 

6.13  The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson positions shall not be held by 

persons appointed by the same governmental body. Only Directors 

appointed by Colo. Spgs. or the County are eligible for selection as 

Chairperson or Vice-Chairperson. 

 

6.14  The PPRTA Board shall meet no less than twice per calendar year. Meetings 

will be held at the Pikes Peak Area Council of Governments offices, or such 

other location as may from time to time be designated by the PPRTA Board. 

Notice of meetings shall be posted in such place and manner as determined 

by the Bylaws of the Authority, in accordance with the Colorado Open 

Meetings Law, Sections 24-6-401 et seq., C.R.S. 

 

6.15  A majority of the PPRTA Board shall constitute a quorum. No official 

action shall be taken by the PPRTA Board unless a quorum is present at a 

meeting. Any action taken by the PPRTA Board shall be approved by a 

simple majority of the total number of votes assigned to those Directors 

present and voting, except as may otherwise be provided for in this 

Agreement. Directors appointed by the County Board and the Colo. Spgs. 

Council shall each be assigned one (1) vote.  Directors appointed by the 

Manitou Council, the GMF Trustees, the Ramah Trustees, and any 

governing body of a Party joining on or after January 1, 2022 shall each be 

assigned a vote calculated as follows: three (3) divided by the current 

number of Parties to the Agreement other than the County and Colo. Spgs.  

By way of example, as of January 1, 2021 this formula would yield 3 / 3 = 

1 vote each.  If one additional Party joins this Agreement this formula would 

yield 3 / 4 = 0.75 vote each.   Any Director appointed by the Governor of 

the State of Colorado shall not be counted towards quorum requirements 

and shall not vote on any action.  

 

6.16  The PPRTA Board may promulgate policies and procedures that govern its 

conduct. 



 

 

 

6.17  The proceedings of the PPRTA Board shall comply with all provisions of 

the Colorado Open Meetings Law, Sections 24-6-401 et seq., C.R.S., and 

shall provide opportunities for public input by, at minimum, permitting the 

public to address the PPRTA Board in open meetings. The PPRTA Board 

shall adopt procedures for calling emergency meetings. 

 

6.18  The PPRTA Board shall appoint a citizen advisory or citizen oversight 

committee and define the duties thereof. 

 

6.19  Board Powers. The PPRTA Board may exercise the following powers: 

 

6.19.1 Adoption of such bylaws as it deems necessary; 

 

6.19.2  Fixing the time and place of meetings and the method of providing 

notice of such meetings; 

 

6.19.3  Making and passing such orders and resolutions necessary for the 

government and management of the affairs of the Authority and the 

execution of the Authority’s powers; 

 

6.19.4  Adoption and use of a seal; 

 

6.19.5  Maintaining offices at such place or places as the PPRTA Board may 

designate; 

 

6.19.6  Contracting for professional services as deemed necessary to 

administer and implement the purposes of this Agreement; 

 

6.19.7  Prescribing methods for auditing and allowing or rejecting claims 

and demands, or for acquisition of equipment; and  

 

6.19.8  Exercising all rights and powers necessary or incidental to or 

implied from the specific powers granted by this Agreement. 

 

6.20  Annual Audit.  The PPRTA Board shall provide for an annual financial 

audit. 

 

7.0  Powers of the Authority. The Authority, acting through the PPRTA Board, shall 

have only the following powers: 

 

7.1  To fund transportation capital improvements, maintenance and operations, 

and transit services, within the boundaries of the Authority, as restricted by 

Section 5 of this Agreement, using funds obtained pursuant to Section 7.2, 

below, based on annual recommendations from the Parties, and consistent 

with Section 5.1 of this Agreement; 



 

 

 

7.2  In accordance with the approval of a majority of voters residing within the 

boundaries of the Authority on November 2, 2004 and November 6, 2012, 

to levy sales and use taxes at a rate of one percent (1%). Following the 

sunset of the capital transportation improvement portion of the Authority 

sales and use tax (as referenced in Section 5.1 of this Agreement), the 

Authority shall levy forty-five one-hundredths of one percent (0.45%) sales 

and use taxes, for the purposes of maintenance, operations, and transit; 

 

7.3  To invest or deposit any revenue as provided for by Section 43-4-616, 

C.R.S.; 

 

7.4  To sue and to be sued; 

 

7.5  To have perpetual existence; 

 

7.6  To enter into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the Authority; 

 

7.7  To fund, construct, operate, or maintain rural transportation systems (now 

regional transportation systems) within the Authority’s boundaries; 

 

7.8  To purchase, trade, exchange, acquire, buy, sell, lease, lease with an option 

to purchase, dispose of, and encumber real or personal property and any 

interest therein including easements and rights-of-way; 

 

7.9  To accept real or personal property for the use of the Authority and to accept 

gifts and conveyances upon the terms and conditions as the PPRTA Board 

may approve; 

 

7.10  To contract with a person or persons to assist the PPRTA Board with 

administrative, accounting, and financial services which may be required to 

carry out the duties enumerated in this Agreement, or to contract with any 

person or persons authorized under Section 6.19.6 of this Agreement. The 

Parties intend for the Authority to contract with the Pikes Peak Area Council 

of Governments to provide these administrative and accounting services, as 

well as a PPRTA Board secretary and a financial officer; and 

 

7.11  In no event shall the Authority be authorized to exercise the power of 

eminent domain, issue bonds, impose motor vehicle registration fees, or 

impose any visitor benefit tax that may otherwise be permitted under law. 

The Authority shall not accept any Highway User Tax Funds from the State 

of Colorado. 

 

8.0 Boundaries. The legal boundaries of the Authority are as follows: 

 



 

 

8.1  All unincorporated areas within the boundaries of El Paso County, 

Colorado; 

 

8.2  The corporate limits of the City of Colorado Springs, as comprised on 

January 1, 2005, and as may be comprised in the future; 

 

8.3  The corporate limits of the City of Manitou Springs, as comprised on 

January 1, 2005, and as may be comprised in the future; 

 

8.4  The corporate limits of the Town of Green Mountain Falls, as comprised on 

January 1, 2005, and as may be comprised in the future; 

 

8.5  The corporate limits of the Town of Ramah, as comprised on January 1, 

2009, and as may be comprised in the future; and 

 

8.7 Additional territory shall be included in, or excluded from, the Authority 

boundaries by following the procedures in Section 12 of this Agreement. 

 

9.0  Effective Date. This Agreement first became effective upon certification by the 

State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs, Division of Local Government 

pursuant to Section 43-4-603(1), C.R.S., after the approval of the majority of the 

voters residing in the County, Colo. Spgs., Manitou, and GMF, at the general 

election held on November 2, 2004. The First Amended and Restated 

Intergovernmental Agreement became effective upon approval and execution by 

the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou Council, the GMF 

Trustees, and the Ramah Trustees and passage of the ballot measure certified by 

the PPRTA Board for the November 6, 2012 election.  The Second Amended and 

Restated Intergovernmental Agreement became effective upon approval and 

execution by the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou Council, the 

GMF Trustees, and the Ramah Trustees and passage of the ballot measure certified 

by the PPRTA Board for the November 7, 2017 election.  The Third Amended and 

Restated Intergovernmental Agreement shall become effective upon approval and 

execution by the County Board, the Colo. Spgs. Council, the Manitou Council, the 

GMF Trustees, and the Ramah Trustees.  The Agreement shall continue in full force 

and effect until terminated.   

 

9.1  The Agreement may be terminated only upon the unanimous agreement of 

the Parties. Such agreement shall be expressed by vote of the governing 

bodies of every signatory to the Agreement. Such vote must be approved by 

unanimous consent of the membership of each governing body.  The 

Authority shall continue for a period of ninety (90) days following the final 

vote to terminate the Agreement, at which time the Authority and the 

Agreement shall be terminated. 

 

10.0 Disposition of Assets Upon Termination. The State of Colorado is ineligible for 

any distribution of property under this Section. Upon any termination of the 



 

 

Authority pursuant to Section 9, the following method shall be used to distribute, 

dispose of, or divide the assets of the Authority: 

 

10.1  Any real property interest or fixtures to real property shall become the 

property of the Party in whose jurisdiction such real estate or fixture is 

located. If property is located within a jurisdiction that is no longer a Party 

to the Agreement, it shall become the property of the County. 

 

10.2  Any personal property shall be liquidated at auction, and the proceeds from 

such sale shall be combined with any cash in the Authority’s accounts. Such 

funds shall be divided among the Parties to the Agreement based upon the 

number of persons residing in the jurisdiction of each Party, relative to the 

total number of persons residing in the Authority’s boundaries, expressed 

as a percentage. 

 

10.3  Any other property not addressed above shall be distributed to one or more 

Parties to the Agreement, as determined by the PPRTA Board members 

prior to termination of the Authority. 

 

11.0  Amendment of Agreement. This Agreement may be amended upon the 

unanimous consent of all Parties. Such consent shall be manifested by a two-thirds 

affirmative vote of the membership of the governing body of each Party.  This 

Section is inapplicable to additions or deletions of territory under Section 12 of the 

Agreement. Section 9.1 of this Agreement may only be amended by a unanimous 

vote of the membership of the governing body of each Party. 

 

12.0  Addition or Deletion of Parties and Territory to this Agreement. 

 

12.1  Any municipality (as defined by Section 31-1-101(6), C.R.S.), or any 

county organized under the laws of the State of Colorado, may request to 

become a Party to this Agreement and a member of the Authority. 

 

12.2  An entity described in Section 12.1 may request to be added as a Party to 

this Agreement, and its corporate boundaries to be added to the territory of 

the Authority, upon a majority vote by the governing body of such 

municipality or county. The governing body shall place the matter on the 

ballot for approval of a majority of voters residing in such jurisdiction at 

any general or special election requesting approval to join the Authority. 

 

12.3  In no event shall an additional municipality or county become a Party to this 

Agreement without the unanimous consent of the existing Parties. Such 

assent shall be determined by a majority vote of the governing bodies of 

each existing Party. 

 

12.4  Any Party may terminate its participation in the Authority by passage of a 

resolution of the governing body of the political subdivision, provided such 



 

 

resolution is passed by a two-thirds majority of the membership of the 

governing body. 

 

12.4.1  In no event may a Party withdraw from the Agreement which, if 

such withdrawal were effective, would result in fewer members than 

one (1) county and one (1) municipality, two (2) municipalities, or 

two (2) counties. In such cases, termination of the Authority is 

appropriate and must be pursued as provided for in this Agreement. 

 

12.5  The PPRTA Board shall take the following actions to include Parties and 

additional territory within the Authority, or prior to deleting any Party and 

territory from the Authority: 

 

12.5.1  Notice of the proposed inclusion or exclusion shall be published in 

a newspaper of general circulation within the Authority boundaries.  

Such notice shall be mailed to the State of Colorado Department of 

Local Affairs, Division of Local Government; to the Colorado 

Transportation Commission; and to the owners of all property to be 

included or excluded at the last known address described for the 

owners in the real estate records of the county in which the property 

is located. 

 

12.5.2  Such notice shall describe the property to be included or excluded, 

shall specify the date, time, and place at which the PPRTA Board 

shall hold a public hearing on the proposed inclusion or exclusion, 

and shall state that persons objecting to the inclusion or exclusion 

may appear at the public hearing to object to the proposed inclusion 

or exclusion. The date of public hearing shall not be less than twenty 

(20) days after the mailing and publication of the notice. 

 

12.5.3  The PPRTA Board shall, on the date and at the time specified, hear 

all objections to the proposed inclusion or exclusion. 

 

12.5.4  The PPRTA Board may adopt a resolution including or excluding 

the described property upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds of the 

total number of votes assigned to the Directors (i.e. upon six (6) 

affirmative votes. The PPRTA Board shall file the resolution with 

the Director of the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs, 

Division of Local Government. 

 

12.5.5  The PPRTA Board may adjust the territory of the Authority as listed 

in Section 8 following approval under this Section as a ministerial 

act, and such act shall not constitute an amendment of this 

Agreement under Section 11. 

 







12.6 Inclusion or exclusion of Parties and territory shall be effective on January
1st of the year following the passage and filing of a resolution as required
by Section 12.5.4 of this Agreement.

WITNESS the signatures of the authorized representatives to the Parties to this Agreement,
as set forth below:

EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO CITY OF COLORADO SPRINGS

Stan VanderWerf, Chair John,,. Suthers, Mayor
Board of County Commissioners
Date:

_________________

Date:

_________________

CITY OF MANITOU SPRINGS TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS

John Graham, Mayor Jane Newberry, Mayor
Date:

_____________________

Date:

_____________________

TOWN OF RAMAH

Dennis Carpenter, Mayor
Date:

____________________

ATTESTED TO:

________________________

El Paso County Clerk and Recorder Colorado Springs City Clerk

Manitou Springs City Clerk Green Mountain Falls Town Clerk

Ramah Town Clerk



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

El Paso County Attorney CdoSpringsitytorney

Manitou Springs City Attorney Green Mountain Falls Town Attorney

Ramah Town Attorney







12.10.21



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
El Paso County Attorney   Colorado Springs City Attorney 
 

                         
             
Manitou Springs City Attorney  Green Mountain Falls Town Attorney 
 

 
       
Ramah Town Attorney    





APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
El Paso County Attorney   Colorado Springs City Attorney 
 

                         
             
Manitou Springs City Attorney  Green Mountain Falls Town Attorney 
 

 
       
Ramah Town Attorney    








	01.04.2021 BOT AGENDA
	3a 2022-01-03 Vendor Invoices Journal.pdf
	3b 12.07.2021 BOT Meeting Minutes Draft
	3c 12.10.2021 BOT Meeting Minutes Draft
	4 Resolution 2022-01 Appointment of Officers - R122721
	INTRODUCED, READ and PASSED this 4th day of January, 2022.
	TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS,  COLORADO

	5 Oath of Office, Clerk and Treasurer
	6 Oath of Office, Town Manager
	7 PRT Advisory Memo - Catamount Trail Reopening
	9 email - PPRTA Fourth Amended and Restated Establishing IGA.pdf
	9a Establishing IGA 4th Amended and Restated (EXECUTED)
	9b 2021-12-08 Resolution by PPRTA to include Calhan (SIGNED)



